Decision No. R98-1141

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF COLORADO

DOCKET NO. 98F-146T

colorado payphone association, a colorado non-profit corporation,


complainant,

v.

u s west communications, Inc.,.


respondent.

recommended decision of
Administrative Law Judge
william j. fritzel
denying requested relief
and dismissing complaint

Mailed Date:  November 20, 1998

Appearances:

Craig D. Joyce, Esq., Denver, Colorado, for the Colorado Payphone Association;

Richard L. Corbetta, Esq., Denver, Colorado, for U S WEST Communications, Inc.; and

Victoria R. Mandell, Assistant Attorney General for the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission.

I.
Statement

A. On March 31, 1998, the Colorado Payphone Association (“CPA”) filed a formal complaint naming U S WEST Communications, Inc. (“U S WEST”), as Respondent.

B. On April 9, 1998, the Commission issued an Order to Satisfy or Answer.

C. On April 29, 1998, U S WEST filed an Answer.

D. On May 6, 1998, the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (“Staff”) filed a Petition to Intervene.  The petition was granted in Decision No. R98-519-I (May 22, 1998).

E. The complaint was heard on June 11, 1998 and July 22, 1998.  Testimony was received from witnesses and Exhibit Nos. 1 through 84 were marked for identification.  Exhibit Nos. 1 through 5, 7, 11, 13, 18, 19, 20, 25, 26, 28, 33 through 46, 50, 54 through 84 were admitted into evidence.  Exhibit Nos. 6, 8, 9, 10, 12, 14 through 17, 21 through 24, 27, 29 through 32, 47, 48, 49, 51, 52, and 53 were either not offered or rejected.  At the conclusion of the case, the matter was taken under advisement.

Administrative notice was taken of Commission Decision No. C91-1128. U. S. WEST filed a copy of the decision for the record. The decision will be referred to as exhibit No. 85. On September 4, 1998, CPA, U S WEST, and Staff filed Statements of Position.  On September 10, 1998, CPA filed a corrected version of its Statement of Position.

F. Pursuant to § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the record of this case and a written recommended decision are transmitted to the Commission.

II. findings of fact and conclusions of law

A. Complainant CPA is a non-profit corporation representing payphone providers in Colorado.  CPA has standing to file this complaint pursuant to § 40-6-108(1)(a), C.R.S.

B. Respondent U S WEST is a telecommunications company doing business in Colorado and other states.

C. The Commission has jurisdiction to entertain the complaint.

D. On March 31, 1998, CPA filed a complaint against U S WEST alleging that the rates of U S WEST payphone offerings, namely basic public access lines (“PAL”) and outgoing fraud protection are unlawful since they are not in compliance with the pricing guidelines pursuant to Federal Communications Commission’s (“FCC”) rules and orders which implement § 276 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“Act”), 47 U.S.C. § 151 et seq.  CPA states that pursuant to orders of the FCC (Exhibit No. 36) the states are responsible to determine if local exchange companies’ (LECs) basic PAL rates are in compliance with § 276 of the Act.  CPA requests that the Commission find that U S WEST’s tariffed basic PAL rates and outgoing fraud protection are unlawful and not in compliance with § 276 of the Act and the FCC’s payphone orders which implement the Act as related to payphones.  CPA requests that the Commission order U S WEST to file new tariffed rates for basic PAL and outgoing fraud protection at reduced rates and that the Commission order U S WEST to pay reparations to payphone providers who obtain PAL lines and outgoing fraud protection from U S WEST.

E. Payphone providers operate public access payphones in numerous locations throughout the State of Colorado.  In order for the payphones to operate, the providers must purchase public access lines from the LECs.  U S WEST is a LEC that offers PAL lines under tariff rates to the payphone providers.

Section 276 of the Act was enacted to promote competition among payphone providers and to encourage widespread availability of payphones.  The Act required the FCC to issue regulations defining non-structural safeguards in order to prevent LECs from subsidizing or discriminating against independent payphone providers in favor of the LECs’ own payphones.  In response to the Act’s mandate, the FCC issued a series of orders interpreting and implementing § 276 of the Act.
  In its order on reconsideration, FCC Docket No. 96-128, FCC 96-439, adopted on November 8, 1996 (Exhibit No. 36) and the FCC’s clarification order, CC Docket No. 96-128, DA97-678 (Exhibit No. 37), the FCC adopted pricing standards to require that rates charged by LECs to payphone providers must meet a four-part test.  The FCC required that the rates be: (1) cost based; (2) consistent with § 276 of the Act; (3) non-discriminatory; and (4) in compliance with the FCC pricing rules.  (Exhibit No. 36, paragraph #163, 

F. Exhibit No. 37, #35) The four-part test or “new services test” requires that the phone rates be based on direct costs plus an allowance for overhead costs.

G. CPA’s Position
1. CPA contends that U S WEST has not complied with § 276 of the Act and FCC orders, thus resulting in U S WEST charging excessive prices for basic PAL access lines and outgoing fraud protection to the payphone service providers.  CPA believes that the rates charged for basic PAL and outgoing fraud protection are not cost based.  The current rates charged the payphone service providers for basic PAL and outgoing fraud protection is found in § 5.5.7.D, U S WEST’s exchange and network services tariff, Colorado PUC No. 15 (Exhibit No. 58).  The current rates for these services are as follows:

Services
Monthly Charge
Usage Charges
End User Common Line (EUCL)____



Flat Basic PAL
$46.63

$9

Measured PAL
$18.07
$.5 for the first minute, $.2 additional minutes


$9

Message PAL
$18.07
$.11 per message
$9

Outgoing fraud protection
$3.75



H. CPA suggests that the Commission adopt rates for basic PAL and outgoing fraud protection based on a methodology that CPA has developed which it believes would result in rates in compliance with the Act and the FCC orders.  CPA believes that costs for the basic PAL service should be determined by reference to the costs approved in Docket No. 96S-331T.  The Commission in this docket determined costs for unbundled network elements (“UNEs”).  The costs determined in this docket and the ultimate UNE rates that were developed are related to the provisioning of basic local exchange services of U S WEST for resale by competitive local exchange carriers (“CLECs”).  CPA believes that the Commission’s investigation of costs in this docket should be used to establish appropriate costs of basic PAL service with appropriate adjustments that reflect the cost characteristics of PAL service.  CPA contends that the standard used by the Commission in Docket No. 96S-331T is the appropriate standard to be used for pricing of basic PAL services.  The rates using the analysis in 96S-331T would result in basic PAL pricing that would be based on costs with the addition of a reasonable profit.  CPA believes that the EUCL charge would be applied as an offset to U S WEST’s cost of providing service in order to recover its direct, shared, and common costs.

I. CPA suggests that the outgoing fraud protection offered by U S WEST to payphone providers must be priced in accordance with the FCC’s four-part test.  U S WEST currently charges $3.75 monthly for this service.  CPA believes that only the direct costs should be considered.  CPA believes that the $3.75 monthly charge for fraud protection is far above U S WEST’s costs.

J. CPA contends that U S WEST’s charge of $70 per line non-recurring charge for PAL service orders is excessive.  CPA points to the non-recurring charges addressed by the Commission in Docket No. 96S-331T wherein the Commission recognized that when multiple lines are requested on the same order, there is a cost savings to U S WEST.  CPA believes that the non-recurring charge for each additional line requested on the same order should be reduced to a charge of $40 for each additional line.

K. CPA in Exhibit No. 81 proposes that the Commission adopt the following basic PAL and fraud protection rates which it believes would be in compliance with the Act and FCC orders.

Service
USOC
Non-Recurring Charge___

Monthly Charge_
Usage Charge

Measured Full Resale Per Line
19Q
$70 first line $40 additional line
$7.81
$.00529/MOU

Message Full Resale, Per Line
1MA
$70 first line $40 additional
$7.81
$.01751/Msg

Flat full resale per line
1FY
$70 first line $40 additional
$14.05


Fraud protection per line
PSESP
$3.94
$.0085



L.
U S WEST’s Position

1. U S WEST believes that its basic PAL rates are lawful and should not be changed or modified in any respect.  U S WEST asserts that its PAL rates were approved by the Commission in Decision No. C91-1128 (August 23, 1991).  U S WEST states that the tariffed rates were established by the Commission in the context of a contested proceeding and are presumptively valid.  U S WEST points out that CPA was a party in this proceeding.  The PAL rates were approved by the Commission and U S WEST filed conforming tariffs with the Commission.  U S WEST asserts that CPA in this complaint case has the burden of establishing that the tariffed rates are unlawful.

2. U S WEST contends that CPA’s proposed PAL rates are based on false assumptions and understate the cost of providing basic PAL service.  U S WEST is critical of CPA’s use of Commission approved rates for UNEs in Docket No. 96S-331T that are necessary for local interconnection by the CLECs.  U.S. WEST believes that CPA’s use of rates established for UNE elements that are unrelated to PAL service, with various adjustments, greatly understates the cost to U S WEST in providing basic PAL service.  U S WEST states that CPA in the development of its proposed rates failed to comply with the Commission’s Costing and Pricing Rules, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (“CCR”) 723-30, by not performing cost studies to support its proposed rates.

3. U S WEST believes that the four-part test announced by the FCC is applicable to the PAL rates at issue in this complaint.  U S WEST asserts that CPA has failed to establish that U S WEST’s basic PAL rates do not comply with the test.  U S WEST contends that (1) its rates are cost based, (2) non-discriminatory since they apply to all payphone providers including U S WEST’s payphones, (3) comply with the pro-competitive provisions of the Act and (4) in all respects comply with the new services test.   U S WEST asserts that the rates approved by the Commission in Decision No. C91-1128 are based on valid cost studies.

4. U S WEST believes that its rates for fraud protection are not a payphone service and therefore not subject to the new services test.  U S WEST asserts that fraud protection or outgoing screening service is available to all U S WEST customers and is not required for payphone service.  Thus U S WEST believes that the established rate is valid and should not be modified.

5. Finally, U S WEST argues that the modification of the non-recurring charge for basic PAL lines currently set at $70 should not be modified.  U S WEST argues that the proposal of CPA to reduce the non-recurring charge to $40 for each additional PAL line would result in the denial of total recovery to U S WEST and ultimately result in an increase in the current $70 rate for the first line.

M.
Staff’s Position

1. Staff asserts that the basic PAL rates of U S WEST should not be modified since the Commission has determined in Decision C91-1128 that the rates based on cost studies are just and reasonable and in compliance with the law. Staff also states that the Commission also considered U. S. WEST’s PAL rates in Docket No. 96A-331T and approved same.  

2. Staff agrees with U S WEST, that CPA’s proposed basic PAL rates are flawed. 

Staff asserts that CPA’s appropriation of UNE rates established in Docket No. 96S-331T is inappropriate since UNE rates are provided to CLECs to allow the CLECs to interconnect with U S WEST to provide basic local exchange resale service.  Staff states that since the methodology used by CPA to develop its proposed basic PAL rates is flawed, the Commission should not adopt the proposed rates.  Staff believes that CPA has failed to meet its burden of proof to establish that the current tariffed basic PAL rates are not just and reasonable and in violation of the law.

III. discussion

A. CPA as Complainant in this proceeding has the burden of proof.  Rule 82 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 4 CCR 723-1; § 24-4-105(7), C.R.S.  The evidence of record establishes that, and it is found that CPA has failed to establish by substantial evidence that U S WEST’s basic PAL rates and rates for outgoing fraud protection are unlawful and not in compliance with Commission decisions and with § 276 of the Act, specifically the four-part test contained in the FCC orders implementing § 276 of the Act.  Congress by enacting the payphone provisions of § 276 intended to promote competition in the pay-phone industry and to ensure that the Bell operating companies would not subsidize or discriminate in favor of their payphone services.  The FCC in its payphone orders developed a four-part test to ensure that the goals and stated purpose of § 276 would be implemented.  The allegations of CPA that U S WEST has not complied with the four-part test is not supported by the record of evidence.  The record establishes that U S WEST has complied with the four-part test:  (1) U S WEST’s basic PAL rates are cost based, and approved by the Commission in Decision No. C91-1128; (2) the PAL rates are non-discriminatory in that they are tariffed rates applicable to all payphone providers including U S WEST’s payphones Division; (3) the rates are consistent with the requirements of § 276; and (4) the rates comply with the new services test since the record demonstrates that the rates are based on direct costs plus a reasonable level of overhead costs.

B. U S WEST’ basic PAL rates and fraud protection rates have been found by the Commission to be just and reasonable.  The proposal of CPA for a reduction in the rates are not supported by valid cost studies but rather rates borrowed from the rates for UNEs established in Docket No. 96S-331T with certain adjustments made by CPA to make the rates specific to payphones.  UNE rates which are established for CLECs in order to provide basic local exchange service do not relate to payphone service.  Since the CPA proposed rates are not supported by cost studies, there is no way of determining whether its proposed rates are just and reasonable.

C. Pursuant to § 40-6-109, C.R.S., it is recommended that the Commission enter the following order.

IV. order

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. The complaint of the Colorado Payphone Association v. U S WEST, Docket No. 98F-146T is dismissed.

2. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

3. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

a. If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

b. If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

4.
If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO



WILLIAM J. FRITZEL
________________________________
Administrative Law Judge
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____________________

Bruce N. Smith

Director
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� The FCC orders include Exhibit Nos. 35 through 43.


� Table from CPA’s Statement of Position, P.16.
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